ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA, FIFTH DISTRICT

PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

SPENCE, PAYNE, MASINGTON, GROSSMAN & NEEDLE, P.A.
Suite 300 Grove Professional Bldg.
2950 S.W. 27th Avenue
Miami, Fla. 33133

and
PODHURST, ORSECK, PARKS, JOSEFSBERG,
EATON, MEADOW & OLIN, P.A.

800 City National Bank Building
25 West Flagler Street
Miami, Florida 33130
(305) 358-2800

Attorneys for Petitioner

BY: JOEL D. EATON

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

This is the most painful brief which undersigned counsel has ever had to prepare and file in any appellate court, in 13 years of appellate practice. It is painful because the district court's decision is utterly dishonest in a pivotal respect, and we cannot avoid saying so. We cannot avoid the charge because the threshold question of this Court's "express and direct conflict" jurisdiction requires that we rely solely on the face of the district court's decision; yet, to rely on that decision would require us to state the case and facts dishonestly to this Court. We simply refuse to do that--and we frankly resent the district court for having placed us in such a position. In addition, there are times when it is necessary to speak from the heart--to be principled rather than politic, at whatever risk--and this is one of those times.

Of course, our demonstration of "express and direct conflict" will be limited to the face of the district court's decision, as it must be. This Court's discretionary jurisdiction is two-pronged, however. We must not only demonstrate conflict; we must also convince the Court that it should exercise its discretion to accept review of the entire case once conflict has been demonstrated.¹/ The decision's dishonesty is relevant to the second step of that process, and we therefore intend to explain our accusation briefly before turning to our demonstration of conflict. Our explanation will render this jurisdictional brief highly unconventional, of course; but the situation in which we have been placed by the district court's decision is unconventional in the extreme--and, since the truth is far more important than mere convention, we do not feel that we have any principled choice.

Although it is impossible to tell from the district court's decision, the central disputed factual issue at trial was the substance of the two Friday afternoon telephone conversations between Dr. Chacko and Mrs. Paddock, and between Dr. Chacko and Mrs.

 $[\]frac{1}{1}$ In fact, the "pink sheet" which this Court sends to counsel in connection with discretionary review proceedings encourages counsel "to include a short statement of why the Supreme Court should exercise its discretion and entertain the case on the merits if it finds it does have jurisdiction".

Paddock's father. Mrs. Paddock testified that, after she had implored Dr. Chacko to help her, he asked if she were willing to be hospitalized, and she willingly consented. Mrs. Paddock's father testified that, although hospitalization was discussed in the follow-up call, Dr. Chacko did not recommend it--and that, if he had made such a recommendation, it would have been willingly followed. Dr. Chacko testified oppositely--that he recommended hospitalization, and that the recommendation was rejected. He explicitly acknowledged twice at trial that his version of the conversations was in stark conflict with the versions to which Mrs. Paddock and her father had testified.

The testimony creating these conflicts is quoted in full in the motion for rehearing which we filed in the district court. We have included a copy of that motion in our appendix to this brief, so the Court can satisfy itself that the testimony will admit of no other reading than what we have set out above.?' The jury resolved these conflicts in the evidence in Mrs. Paddock's favor by its verdict, of course, so the district court was required by law to accept the fact that hospitalization was neither recommended nor rejected.³/ The district court obviously disagreed with the verdict, however, and apparently because it could think of no other way to avoid the verdict, it accepted Dr. Chacko's version of the facts as true, and then declared that version to be "admitted"--and it then bottomed its entire decision on that single pivotal declaration--"the admitted fact that Chacko recommended hospitalization which recommendation was rejected" (slip opinion, p. 4).

The result of this declaration (indeed, the apparent purpose of it) was to change the central issue in the case from a perfectly legitimate and defensible one--whether Dr.

 $[\]frac{2}{1}$ The appendix contains the district court's decision (A. 1), our motion for rehearing (A. 13), and the order denying our motion for rehearing (A. 44). Since the timeliness of our invocation of this Court's jurisdiction has been placed in issue by the respondent below (and may ultimately be placed in issue here), these three documents are the "documents necessary to reflect jurisdiction"--which, according to this Court's "pink sheet", are appropriate items for inclusion in the appendix.

^{3/} See, e. g., Helman v. Seaboard Coast Line Railroad Co., 349 So.2d 1187 (Fla. 1977); Welfarev. Seaboard Coast Line Railroad Co., 373 So.2d 886 (Fla. 1979).

Chacko was negligent in failing to recommend and ensure that Mrs. Paddock was hospitalized, when she was willing to be hospitalized--to an altogether indefensible one: whether, as the District Court ultimately framed the issue upon its initially-postulated "admitted fact", Dr. Chacko had any "legal duty or legal authority to non-consensually take a patient into his custody and compel her hospitalization" (slip opinion, p. 4). $\frac{41}{2}$ Most respectfully, we are unable to believe that this complete revision of the plaintiff's lawsuit was simply a mistake.

The plaintiff's version of the critical telephone calls was stated in the proper light in our initial brief. We also set out all the conflicting testimony verbatim in our motion for rehearing, so that there could be no doubt about its existence. Since the conflicting evidence was called to the district court's attention in no uncertain terms, we can only believe that its ultimate refusal to correct the single pivotal declaration upon which its entire decision turned represents a purposeful decision to override a jury verdict with which it disagreed, rather than a fair and honest appraisal of the record within the constraints of the law. That is the strongest charge we have ever had to direct at any court in **13** years of practicing here (and we hope we never have to do it again). We assure the Court that we would not have lodged the accusation here if we were not absolutely certain that the record proved it beyond any reasonable doubt--and we stand ready to prove the accusation here, if the Court will only give us that opportunity.

Unfortunately, since the district court's decision does not acknowledge the conflicting testimony, we cannot rely upon this dishonest aspect of the decision for conflict here. It provides ample reason for this Court to accept jurisdiction if we can make the requisite demonstration of conflict, however, and we therefore turn to that task. Our demonstration of conflict will be limited to the face of the decision (such as it

 $[\]frac{4}{}$ By changing both the facts and the issue in that manner, of course, the District Court turned a perfectly legitimate lawsuit into an absurd non *sequitur* which probably would never have been filed in the first place--which was terribly unfair to the plaintiff, her able trial counsel, and the eminently qualified psychiatrists who testified on her behalf that Dr. Chacko's negligence was a cause of her injuries.

is), to which the Court is referred for the remainder of our statement of the case and facts.

II. SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

ISSUE A. The district court's determination--that Dr. Chacko owed the plaintiff no duty of care as a matter of law, notwithstanding the existence of expert medical opinion testimony proving his breach of the prevailing standard of care as a matter of fact--is in express and direct conflict with *Wale v. Barnes*, 278 So.2d 601 (Fla. 1973), and similar cases, which hold that the nature and extent of a physician's duty of care is essentially a question of fact to be determined upon expert testimony, and that the existence of expert testimony that a defendant has breached the prevailing standard of care precludes a directed verdict for the defendant.

ISSUE B. The district court's determination--that the plaintiff's expert opinion testimony on the issue of causation was "speculative" as a matter of law, and that the plaintiff's verdict was therefore unsupported by any competent evidence on that issue--is in express and direct conflict with (1) *Wale v. Barnes*, 278 So.2d 601 (Fla. 1973), and similar cases, which hold that a medical expert's opinion on the issue of causation is "direct evidence" which proves a prima facie case on the issue, precluding a court from directing a verdict on the issue; and (2) *Cromarty v. Ford Motor* Co., 341 So.2d 507 (Fla. 1976), and similar cases, which hold that a court may not declare an expert opinion "speculative" unless the opinion has "no basis in evidentiary fact".

III. ARGUMENT

ISSUE A. The district court not only changed both the facts and the central issue to avoid the plaintiff's verdict; it also failed to apply settled principles of Florida law to the so-called "admitted fact" upon which it ultimately rested its decision. It is settled in Florida that physicians owe their patients a duty to comport with the prevailing standard of care exercised by similar health care providers; that the nature and extent of that duty is therefore essentially a question of fact, to be determined upon expert testimony;

and that the existence of expert testimony that a physician has breached the prevailing standard of care presents a jury question on the duty issue, precluding a court from directing a verdict on that issue.51

Perhaps the leading decision is this Court's decision in *Wale v. Barnes*, 278 So.2d 601, 603 (Fla. 1973), which speaks quite clearly on the point for itself:

The key issue for us in this malpractice case concerns the propriety of the trial court's directed verdict in favor of defendants (doctors) and the subsequent affirmance by the district court. These lower court rulings mean that the plaintiffs did not present a prima facie case of medical malpractice. In other words, plaintiffs did not satisfy their burden of establishing (1) a standard of care owed by defendants to plaintiffs, (2) a breach of that standard, and (3) that said breach proximately caused the damages claimed. See Hunt v. Gerber, 166 So.2d 720 (Fla. App.3d 1964).

Our careful review, however, leads us to the opposite conclusion. The record in this cause contains sufficient evidence on these three prerequisites outlined above to make a prima facie case of medical malpractice which necessarily precludes a directed verdict for the defendants on the issue of liability.

The first two elements of a prima facie case of malpractice as set forth above are a standard of care and a breach of that standard. The evidence on these two elements is found in the testimony of Dr. Kahn. According to Dr. Kahn the use of Tucker-McLane forceps on Gary's "molded" head during a midforceps delivery constitutes a departure from the accepted medical standard of care in Dade County, Florida.

Wale v. Barnes is still clearly the law:

To prevail in a medical malpractice case a plaintiff must establish the following: the standard of care owed by the defendant, the defendant's breach of the standard of care, and that said breach proximately caused the damages claimed. *Wale v. Barnes*, 278 So.2d 601, 603 (Fla. 1973). In this case, Dr. Bailey's testimony established the standard of care and the hospital's breach of that standard.

Gooding v. University Hospital Building, Inc., 445 So.2d 1015, 1018 (Fla. 1984). Accord,

Pohl v. Witcher, 477 So.2d 1015, 1017-18 (Fla. 1st DCA 1985) (repeating above language

^{5&#}x27; While we must rely upon the decisional law to demonstrate conflict here, it is worth noting that our brief synopsis of the law governing the duty issue is also codified by \$768.45(1), Fla. Stat. (1981), which was applicable to the instant case, and which unambiguously provided a cause of action for "breach of the accepted standard of care" proven to the jury's satisfaction by expert opinion testimony.

from Gooding, and holding that conflicting expert opinion testimony on whether defendant "deviated from the accepted standard of care" was sufficient to require submission of the "duty" issue to the jury). And finally, the essential point--that the duty issue in a medical malpractice case is essentially a question of fact, not a question of law--is succinctly stated in *Hunt v. Palm Springs General Hospital, Inc.*, 352 So.2d 582, 585 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1977), as follows: "We hold that the question . . of whether [defendant-hospital] owed [plaintiff] a duty of care. . . [was] for the jury to determine" (emphasis supplied).

In contrast to these four decisions (and there are numerous others which make the same essential point, with which we will not trouble the Court), the district court's decision acknowledges on its face that "[f]our psychiatrists testified on plaintiff's behalf, essentially stating. . . that Chacko's failure to hospitalize the plaintiff was a departure from the acceptable standard of care" (slip opinion, p. 4)--but then, after "[a]ccepting this conclusion from a medical standpoint" (*id.*), the decision declares nevertheless "that the existence of a legal duty was a question of law for the court and not for the jury" (*id.*, p. 2). In short, the decision holds that, notwithstanding the existence of expert testimony proving both the standard of care and its breach, the defendant owed the plaintiff no duty of care as a matter of law.

Most respectfully, as *Wale v. Barnes* and the other cited decisions clearly hold, the nature and extent of Dr. Chacko's duty to Mrs. Paddock depended entirely upon the expert evidence establishing his duty of care from the "medical standpoint", not upon the opinion of three judges with no medical expertise whatsoever as to whether such a duty should be recognized from a "legal standpoint". The conflict is undeniable; it is both express and direct, and it is precisely the type of conflict for which this Court's discretionary review jurisdiction was created--and we respectfully urge the Court to grant review of the district court's decision in order to resolve the undeniable conflict. $\underline{6}$ /

We cannot predict what the defendant's response to this contention will be, although it is probable that he will respond as he did in his response to our motion for rehearing

ISSUE B. The face of the decision sought to be reviewed reveals an additional basis for the jury's verdict which was also fully supported by expert opinion testimony--that Dr. Chacko "was negligent for failing to arrange for a face-to-face examination of his patient", and that this negligence also "caused the plaintiff's injuries" (slip opinion, p. 11). To override the verdict to the extent that it was supported by this evidence, the district court turned to a different element of the prima facie case which the plaintiff had proven. It declared the experts' opinions on causation "speculative", and then concluded that the verdict was therefore unsupported by any competent medical evidence on the issue of causation." This conclusion creates "express and direct conflict" with at least two related lines of authority emanating from this Court.

The first line of authority is represented by *Wale v. Barnes*, 278 So.2d 601 (Fla. 1973). In that case, a medical expert had given an opinion on the issue of causation, and the Third District thereafter declared the opinion insufficient to support a jury finding on the issue of causation. This Court quashed that decision, holding that, as a matter of

below. In that response, he argued (without citation of any authority whatsoever) that "duty" and "standard of care" are separate and distinct concepts, and that courts are free to determine as a matter of law in medical malpractice cases whether a "duty" exists, notwithstanding that the medical evidence may well prove a breach of the prevailing "standard of care". We are convinced that "duty" and "standard of care" are essentially the same things in the context presented here, since it is thoroughly established that the duty owed by a physician to a patient is to conform to the prevailing standard of care. If we are wrong about that, however, so was the Third District when it announced in *Hunt* **v.** Palm Springs General Hospital, supra, that "the question ... of whether [defendant] owed [plaintiff] a duty of care ... [was] for the jury to determine". 352 So.2d at 585 (emphasis supplied). The district court's decision is therefore clearly in conflict with Hunt, at least, even if the defendant is correct that "duty" and "standard of care" are separate and distinct concepts.

 $[\]frac{7}{}$ Once again, the district court had to resort to a less than honest reading of the record to reach this conclusion. The so-called "elaboration" which it quoted from the cross-examination of one of the plaintiff's experts was not an elaboration on the issue of *causation;* it was given in response to a hypothetical question on the issue of *negligence*, when the expert was asked if he would still have been of the opinion that Dr. Chacko was negligent if he *had* conducted a face-to-face interview. Nowhere did the expert modify his opinion that Dr. Chacko was negligent for the undisputed fact that he did *not* meet his patient--and the expert most certainly did not qualify his opinion that that negligence was a *cause* of the plaintiff's injuries. We brought this point to the district court's attention in our motion for rehearing (*see* A. 38-41), but this aspect of our motion was ignored as well.

law, an expert's opinion on the issue of causation is "direct evidence" on the issue, and that such evidence, by itself, "creates a prima facie case on the question of *causation*". *Id.* at 604. This Court thereafter elaborated as follows (*id.* at 605):

The pertinent portion of Dr. Kaplan's testimony is as follows:

. . . .

"A. In my opinion, the cause--within reasonable medical probability, *the cause of the chronic subdural hematomas was the traumatic or injurious forceps delivery of this child* in *which the head was injured.*" (Emphasis added).

. . . .

Succinctly stated, Dr. Kaplan opined that the use of forceps caused Gary's subdural hematomas. Even though there is contrary medical evidence in the record indicating that the subdural hematomas may have been caused by trauma or a troublesome trip down the birth channel (non-negligent acts) the above-quoted testimony of Dr. Kaplan makes a prima facie case on the issue of causation.

Inasmuch as the testimony of Dr. Kaplan in and of itself makes a prima facie case relating to causation, we need not reach the issue of whether there is circumstantial evidence pertaining to causation; the direct testimony of Dr. Kaplan is sufficient in these circumstances.

Since Wale v. Barnes, of course, there are numerous medical malpractice decisions holding that the existence of expert opinion testimony on the issue of causation is "direct evidence" which proves a prima facie case on the issue, requiring its submission to the jury and precluding a court from directing a verdict on the issue. See, e. g., Maltempo v. Cuthbert, 504 F.2d 325, 327 (5th Cir. 1974) ("under Florida law, where there is direct medical evidence attributing the injury to the negligence, a prima facie case of causation is established and it becomes a jury question. Wale v. Barnes, supra."); Zack v. Centro Espanol Hospital, Inc., 319 So.2d 34 (Fla. 2nd DCA 1975); Hunt v. Palm Springs General Hospital, Inc., 352 So.2d 582 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1977); City of Hialeah v. Weatherford, 466 So.2d 1127 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1985); Pohl v. Witcher, 477 So.2d 1015 (Fla. 1st DCA 1985). In the instant case, the district court held that the expert opinion testimony on the issue of causation did not present a prima facie case, and that the trial court could properly

direct a verdict on the issue notwithstanding the existence of the expert opinion testimony. We think the conflict with *Wale v. Barnes* and its progeny is indisputable.

Apparently, the district court calculated that it could finesse *Wale v. Barnes* by simply declaring the experts' opinions "speculative" as a matter of law. In doing so, however, the district court placed itself in conflict with a second line of authority emanating from this Court. Perhaps the closest case on point is *Crornarty v. Ford Motor Co.*, 341 So.2d 507 (Fla. 1976). In that case, the trial court had granted a motion for judgment notwithstanding a plaintiff's verdict, and the district court had "affirmed the action of the trial court on the theory that the testimony by the experts was so speculative and so filled with conjecture that it was not sufficient to constitute a basis for rendering the judgment". *Id.* at 508. Relying on *Wale v. Barnes*, and observing that "[w]e are of the view that expert opinions, when supported by scientific and factual data, must be relied upon in reaching the ends of justice and that the need for such reliance continues as a society becomes more complex", this Court held that a district court may not declare an expert opinion on causation "speculative" as a matter of law, except in the single instance where the opinion has "no basis in evidentiary fact". *Id.* at 508-09.

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