IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO.: 72,338

LINDA K. PADDOCK,

Petitioner,

VS.

165

CHAWALLUR DeVASSY CHACKO, M.D.,

Respondent.



JUN 9 1988



ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA, FIFTH DISTRICT

RESPONDENT'S AMENDED BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

,HARRYK. ANDERSON, ESQUIRE One South Orange Avenue Suite 650 Orlando, Florida 32801 (407) 422-1781

-and-

E. CLAY PARKER, ESQUIRE
J. SCOTT MURPHY, ESQUIRE
PARKER, JOHNSON, OWEN, McGUIRE
& MICHAUD
108 East Hillcrest Street
Orlando, Fl 32802
(407) 425-4910

Attorneys for Respondent

TABLE **OF** CONTENTS

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

I. <u>INTRODUCTION</u>

Outrageous is perhaps the closest, yet still inexact, word which comes to mind after reading Petitioner's misguided and unprofessional attempt to influence this Court by inferring the existence of some sort of conspiracy amongst three appellate judges, one trial judge, respondent and his counsel to suppress facts and deny Petitioner "justice".

Under the guise of demonstrating to the Court why it should exercise its discretion to review this case, Petitioner has resorted to invective and vituperation. While Respondent's counsel have been forced to fend off such attacks directed against them throughout the course of this litigation, this Court should neither condone nor permit such unethical attacks directed at the judiciary by counsel with "thirteen years of appellate practice.''

As losing parties often say, only they speak "the truth" and only they are "principled". As amply demonstrated by Petitioner's brief, itself, the latter is one quality clearly lacking in Petitioner's position. As for the truth, suffice it to say that Petitioner's "version" is so misleading and inaccurate that two courts and four judges have already rejected it.

While it is inappropriate to go beyond the face of the District Court's decision in a jurisdictional brief, as Petitioner has done, we feel compelled to make the following points.

First, the District Court's recitation of the facts on pages three and four of its opinion is completely accurate. Dr. Chacko suggested that Respondent be hospitalized, but she deferred to her parents. Petitioner's mother deferred to her husband. Before speaking to Petitioner further, Dr. Chacko called the hospital and

reserved a bed for Petitioner. Petitioner's father, concerned about insurance, did not think his daughter needed to be hospitalized, and never gave his consent for his daughter's hospitalization.

At trial, Petitioner's own experts assumed and based their opinions on the fact that hospitalization was recommended, but rejected. Petitioner's contention, at trial, was that something more than the telephone conversations was necessary.

Specifically, Petitioner contended that Dr. Chacko should have arranged a face to face interview, and **if** observations and examinations warranted it, Dr. Chacko should have involuntarily committed Petitioner.

The District Court's rejection of such a theory forced

Petitioner to, for the first time, argue in her Motion for

Rehearing that Dr. Chacko's recommendation of hospitalization was

not made strongly enough; that "voluntary" hospitalization could

have been accomplished had Dr. Chacko insisted and/or threatened

invoking the Baker Act procedures.

Petitioner is engaging in a game of semantics, quarrelling with the terms used by the District Court. The point being made by the District Court was that Dr. Chacko had no <u>legal</u> duty or authority to "non-consensually take a patient into his custody and compel her hospitalization". In other words, Dr. Chacko had no duty to "demand and insure" hospitalization by taking control of Petitioner's life away from her, whether it was under the guise of "voluntary" or "involuntary hospitalization".

In conclusion, three judges of the District Court did not lie,

were not dishonest, and were not guilty of anything except a refusal to be brow-beaten by the "experienced" Appellate counsel's insults, threats and ridicule as set forth in Petitioner's Motion for Rehearing. Petitioner's childish reiteration of these comments does not, and should not, form the basis for convincing this Court to accept jurisdiction.

With that said, we now turn to the alleged conflict between the District Court's decision here, and Wale vs. Barnes, 278 So.2d 601 (Fl. 1973) and Cromartv vs. Ford Motor Co., 341 So.2d 507 (Fl. 1976).

11. SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

- A. The District Court's decision, that Dr. Chacko was, as a matter of law, under no duty to non-consensually take the Petitioner into his custody and involuntarily hospitalize her does not conflict with Wale vs. Barnes, 278 So.2d 601 (Fl. 1973). Whether a legal duty exists (as opposed to the "nature and extent" of such a duty) between the parties is a question of law for the court to decide. The decision in Wale vs. Barnes does not hold to the contrary, nor do any of the other cases cited by Petitioner.
- B. The District Court's determination that the failure of Dr. Chacko to arrange a "face to face" examination of Petitioner was not, as a matter of law, a proximate cause of Petitioner's self inflicted injuries does not conflict with Wale vs. Barnes, 278 So.2d 601 (Fl. 1973). There was no "direct evidence" on the issue of proximate cause, since Petitioner presented no testimony that such a contact would have prevented the Plaintiff's suicide attempt.

Similarly, the District Court's decision does not conflict with Cromarty vs. Ford Motor Co., 341 So.2d 507 (Fl. 1976), since the court found the expert testimony to be speculative with no basis in evidentiary fact. The basis of the expert testimony was not fact, but speculation as to (1) what Dr. Chacko might have learned during an in person examination and (2) what Dr. Chacko might have done with that information.

III. ARGUMENT

A. THE DISTRICT COURT'S DETERMINATION THAT DR. CHACKO WAS, AS A MATTER OF LAW, UNDER NO DUTY TO NON-CONSENSUALLY TAKE THE PETITIONER INTO HIS CUSTODY AND COMPEL HER HOSPITALIZATION DOES NOT CONFILCT WITH WALE VS. BARNES.

For the third time in this litigation, Petitioner repeats the argument that the "nature and extent' of a physician's duty is a question of fact, to be determined upon expert testimony. And, for the third time, we acknowledge this as being a correct statement of the law, but totally irrelevant to the issue here.

In order for there to be an issue as to the "nature and extent" of a physician's duty under certain circumstances, the Court must first determine, as a matter of law, whether such a duty exists.

Florida Power & Lisht vs. Lively, 465 So.2d 1270, 1273 (Fl. 3d DCA 1985). It is not the role of "experts" to dictate what legal duties exist: they merely explain the parameters of the standard of care, once a duty is established'by the Court.

The trial court determined, and the District Court agreed, that a psychiatrist has no duty to assume custodial care of a patient. In other words, the court found Chat, under any version of the facts, there was no duty on the part of Dr. Chacko to assume responsibility for the Petitioner's actions and decisions, nor any

duty to take control of her life away from her.

The decision in <u>Wale vs. Barnes</u>, 278 So.2d 601 (Fl. 1973) does not in any way conflict with this holding. In <u>Wale</u>, there was no issue as to the existence of a <u>duty</u> between the Plaintiff and Defendant. The Court properly presumed that an obstetrician had a duty to deliver Plaintiff's child in accordance with the "nature and extent" of the standard of care, as determined by the jury.

The District Court's decision here was in accordance with established Florida law. While there are no Florida cases on point, a few analogies to other situations clearly demonstrate the correctness of the Court's decision.

In emergency situations, courts have long held that a person is under no affirmative duty to rescue a person in distress, but once that duty is assumed, the person has an obligation to act reasonably. See, Prosser, Law of Torts, §2 (4th ed. 1971);

Restatement 2d (Torts) §§ 314-21. Similarly, police officers have no duty to arrest certain individuals, but once they have arrested a particular individual, they have a duty to act reasonably. See, Everton vs. Willard, 468 So.2d 936 (Fl. 1985).

Similarly here, the District Court determined that Dr. Chacko had no duty to assume custodial care of the Plaintiff. Of course, if he had voluntarily assumed that duty, he would then have had a duty to act reasonably. See, e.g., Nesbitt vs. Community Health of South Dade. Inc. 467 So.2d 711 (Fl. 3rd DCA 1985); North Miami General Hospital vs. Krakower, 393 So.2d 57 (Fl. 3rd DCA 1981); Dillman v. Hellman, 283 So.2d 388 (Fl. 2nd DCA 1973).

As the District Court noted, in each of these cases, "...the

patients were already committed to the custody of a hospital or mental institution...and thus, these custodians were in a position to exercise measures to prevent the suicidal patients from inflicting injuries upon themselves. (Slip Opinion, p. 7-8).

There is also no conflict with <u>Hunt vs. Palm Springs General</u>
<u>Hospital</u>, 352 So.2d 582 (Fl. 3rd DCA 1977). There, the patient
was brought to the emergency room of the Defendant hospital and
seen by a resident who called the patient's private physician.
The patient was sent home without being admitted, but returned a
few hours later. He was then seen by his private physician who
was told that the Plaintiff could not be admitted unless Plaintiff
was in "critical condition". The private physician did not find
the Plaintiff to be critical, the Plaintiff was moved into the
hall, and after some hours, finally transferred to another
hospital.

While the court speaks to the issue of the existence of a duty, it is clear that the court actually determined a legal duty <u>might</u> exist between the hospital and patient, but both the extent of that duty and whether the relationship between the parties was such that a legal duty would be imposed, was for the jury to determine.

In other words, the court determined that, depending on the nature of the relationship between the hospital and patient (a factual issue) a legal duty might be required of the hospital when the Plaintiff was seen by nurses and a resident and then left in the hospital hallway for several hours. The fact that the patient had not formally been admitted did not necessarily mean that no

such duty existed, nor did the fact that he was under the care of a private physician. Whether a relationship existed which would, as a matter of law, result in the imposition of such a duty, was for the jury to determine, since it depended on the facts adduced at trial.

Therefore, the <u>Hunt</u> decision is totally inapplicable here. Not only are the facts distinguishable, but the holding in <u>Hunt</u> does not conflict with the District Court's opinion here. Thus, there is no basis for the exercise of the Court's jurisdiction.

B. THE DISTRICT COURT'S DECISION THAT THE FAILURE TO ARRANGE FOR A "FACE TO FACE" EXAMINATION WAS, AS A MATTER OF LAW, NOT A PROXIMATE CAUSE OF PLAINTIFF'S INJURIES DOES NOT CONFLICT WITH WALE VS. BARNES OR ITS PROGENY OR CROMARTY VS. FORD MOTOR CO.

Petitioner's first argument is that the existence of expert testimony as to causation precludes a court from directing a verdict on the issue, and the District Court's opinion conflicts with, inter alia, Wale vs. Barnes, 278 So.2d 601 (Fl. 1973); Zack vs. Centro Espanol Hospital, Inc., 319 So.2d 34 (2nd 1975); City of Hialeah vs. Weatherford, 466 So.2d 1127 (Fl. 3rd DCA 1985) and Hunt vs. Palm Springs General Hospital, 352 So.2d 582 (Fl. 3rd DCA 1977). Petitioner again has misconstrued the District Court's opinion. The District Court, in analyzing the issue of a "face to face" contact by Dr. Chacko, found that there were only two possible results of such a contact. First, Dr. Chacko could have determined there was no need for the patient to be hospitalized, (a decision that the Plaintiff's own experts would not have

¹ There was no testimony, nor any contention, that a face to face contact would, in and of itself, have "cured" the plaintiff, or somehow prevented the Plaintiff from attempting suicide.

criticized) and the patient would have attempted suicide two days later. Second, Dr. Chacko could have determined and recommended Plaintiff should have been hospitalized, a recommendation already made, but rejected, and the patient would again have attempted suicide two days later.2

Thus, no matter what happened as a result of this hypothetical contact, the Petitioner would still have attempted suicide. The District Court therefore properly concluded that, as a matter of law, there was no version of the facts which would support the conclusion that the failure to conduct a face to face examination "proximately caused" the Plaintiff's self inflicted injuries. This is a completely different situation from that contained in any of the cases cited by Petitioner as being in conflict with this holding.

For example, in <u>Wale</u>, the experts' testimony was that the cause of the child's injuries was the improper use of forceps during delivery. Similarly, in <u>Zack vs. Centro Espanol Hospital</u>, <u>Inc.</u>, 319 So.2d 34 (Fl. 2nd DCA 1975), the experts testified directly that the improper removal of a catheter caused the Plaintiff's injuries. And, in <u>Hunt</u>, the experts testified that Defendant's negligence caused Plaintiff's death, and that the death was avoidable.

That is exactly the type of testimony which the District Court

² The only other "protective measure" that could have been taken after such a meeting was the forcible, involuntary confinement of the Plaintiff. As previously discussed, the Court held that Dr. Chacko had no legal duty to non-consensually take Plaintiff into his custody.

found lacking here. There was simply no expert testimony that had Dr. Chacko seen Petitioner in person, she would not have attempted suicide two days later. Petitioner's own experts would not have criticized Dr. Chacko if he had seen her, and decided that hospitalization was unnecessary. There was no testimony or evidence that had he recommended hospitalization, the recommendation would not have again been rejected. Thus, there was a clear break in the chain of causation, unlike the situations in the cases cited by Petitioner.

Petitioner's second argument is that because the District Court termed the expert's testimony as "speculative" rather than having "no basis in evidentiary fact", somehow this conflicts with the holding of Cromarty vs. Ford, 341 So.2d 507 (Fl. 1976).

Petitioner has misconstrued the holding of <u>Cromarty</u>, by stating that this Court held that expert testimony on causation could not be speculative as a matter of law.

The Court very clearly stated:

"We well agree with the District Court of Appeal that verdicts should not be based upon speculative and conjectural testimony with no basis in evidentiary fact." <u>Id</u>. at 508.

The Court concluded, however, that the expert testimony presented at trial was not "speculative", since it was based on the evidentiary fact that a part of the product had indeed fractured. It was this fact that formed the basis of the expert's testimony that a defect caused the fracture which then caused the accident.

In the instant case, there simply was no "evidentiary fact" to buttress the expert testimony on this issue. The sole "basis" for

the experts' opinions on the existence of a causal link (if there was any basis at all) between the lack of a face to face interview and Plaintiff's self inflicted injuries was not fact, but speculation by the experts as to what additional information Dr. Chacko might have discovered during such a meeting <u>and</u> what Dr. Chacko might have done with that information.

There were no evidentiary facts that provided this information, and the expert testimony quoted in the District Court's opinion admits as much. As a result, the Court was eminently correct in finding the testimony "speculative" as a matter of law. This holding was not in conflict with, but was in accordance with the decision in Cromarty.

There being no conflict with either <u>Wale vs. Barnes</u> or <u>Cormartv vs. Ford</u>, the Petitioner has failed to demonstrate that this Court has jurisdiction to review this matter. The Petition should therefore be denied.

V. CONCLUSION

When stripped of its insults, threats and vitriol, Petitioner's attempt to show "express and direct conflict" with the District Court's decision falls far short. Not only, is there no conflict present, the District Court's decision follows long established law on the issues of duty and proximate cause. As a result, the Petition to invoke this Court's discretionary jurisdiction should be denied.